
 

 

 
 

  

   
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

STUDY SESSION 5:30 p.m. 
 

Please silence all electronic devices, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

1. Public Comment 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under “Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

2. Discussion – Consideration of Sale, Real Property (Lemoore Golf Course) 

3. Closed Session Public Comment 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time.  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

4. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
 Conference with Legal Counsel, Potential Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) 
Cases:  Two 

 Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 023-120-001, 023-120-005, and 023-120-006 (Lemoore Golf Course) 
Negotiating Parties:  City Manager Laws and City Attorney Avedisian/Tachi Yokut Tribe 

 Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 023-120-001, 023-120-005, and 023-120-006 (Lemoore Golf Course) 
Negotiating Parties:  City Manager Laws and City Attorney Avedisian/Rhoads Golf, LLC. 

5. Adjourn to Regular Meeting of the City Council 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL – 7:30 p.m. 
 

Please silence all electronic devices, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

1. Call to Order:       A. Pledge of Allegiance          B.  Invocation 

2. Public Comment 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under “Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker’s 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

 
 
 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 “C” STREET 
December 3, 2013 



 

 

Items for Council Consideration and Action 
 

3. Consent Calendar 

All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion.  For discussion of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the 
request of any member of the City Council or any person in the audience.  

A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – November 19, 2013 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – , November 27, 2013 
C. Approval – Notice of Completion – CMC Office PH-1 Electrical 
D. Approval – Notice of Partial Completion – 19th/198 Irrigation Relocation Project – Clark 

Brothers, Inc. 

4. Public Hearing – Declaring Public Nuisance and Ordering Weed Abatement 

5. Public Hearing – Recommending Approval of (1) Negative Declaration, (2) Tentative Subdivision 
Map (Capistrano, Phase V) 2013-02, (3) Planned Unit Development 2013-01 -  Subdivision of 4.5 
Acres Located on the East Side of Barcelona Drive, Approximately 150 Feet North of Toledo 
Street into 20 Single-Family Lots 

6. Public Hearing – Recommending approval of (1) Negative Declaration, (2) General Plan 
Amendment 2013-01 – Request to Remove Collector Street and Bikeway Status from West Bush 
Street, West of Marsh Drive, (3) Zone Change 2013-01 – Request to Change the Zoning Map from 
Low Density Residential and Parks and Recreation to Public Services and Community Facilities of 
Approximately 53 Acres Located at the Northwest and Southwest Corners of West Bush Street 
and Marsh Drive 

7. Presentation – Regional Transportation Plan – Kings Regional Vision 

8. Department/City Manager Reports  

9. City Council Reports and Requests for Information 

10. Adjourn to Lemoore Successor Agency to the Former Redevelopment Agency Meeting 
 

11. Report and Recommendation – Refunding of Series 1998 and 2003 Bonds 

12. Adjourn to Lemoore City Council Meeting 

13. Closed Session Public Comment 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time.  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

14. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
 Conference with Legal Counsel, Potential Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) 
Cases:  Two 

 Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 023-120-001, 023-120-005, and 023-120-006 (Lemoore Golf Course) 
Negotiating Parties:  City Manager Laws and City Attorney Avedisian/Tachi Yokut Tribe 

 Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 023-120-001, 023-120-005, and 023-120-006 (Lemoore Golf Course) 
Negotiating Parties:  City Manager Laws and City Attorney Avedisian/Rhoads Golf, LLC. 

15. Adjournment 
 

TENTATIVE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

December 17th  
Approval – Request for Proposals – LLMD and PFMD 
Approval – Notice of Completion – Safe Routes to School 
Appointments – Planning Commission 
Appointments – Parks and Recreation Commission 
Public Hearing – Zoning Code Update 



 

 

 

 
Notice of ADA Compliance:  If you or anyone in your party needs reasonable accommodation to 
attend, or participate in, any City Council Meeting, please make arrangements by contacting City Hall 
at least 24 hours prior to the meeting by calling 924-6700, or by mail at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, 
California 93245. 
 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 
119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In addition, most documents will be 
posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com. 
 

 
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

 

  I, Brooke Austin, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Lemoore, do hereby declare that the foregoing 
agenda for the Lemoore City Council regular meeting of Tuesday, December 3, 2013 was posted on 
the outside bulletin board located at City Hall, 119 Fox Street in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements on the 27th day of November 2013. 

             
      Brooke Austin, Chief Deputy City Clerk  



                                        
WELCOME TO YOUR LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

 

Whether you are attending this meeting because of general interest, or because a particular item of special interest is to be 
reviewed, your presence is an important means of helping to insure an informed public and responsible City Government. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
City Council, the legislative body of the City, is composed of five Councilmembers elected at large for overlapping four year terms.  
The Mayor is elected by the members of the Council every two years. The Council establishes laws, policies, financing and 
standards of municipal services necessary to efficient operation of the City. 
 

CITY MANAGER 
The City Manager is employed by the City Council to administer and manage all of the daily activities and operations of the City 
within the policy guidelines established by the City Council. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Planning Commission has been established to advise the City Council in planning and zoning matters. 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETINGS 
Meetings are held at 7:30 p.m. on First and Third Tuesday of each month.  Business requiring Council action is listed on the Council 
Meeting Agenda (yellow-colored).  An agenda is prepared for each Council Meeting.  In compliance with the State open meeting 
laws (Brown Act), only those items on the agenda may be acted upon by the City Council.  There is normally a study session at 5:30 
p.m. on City Council days. 
 

CONDUCT AT PUBLIC MEETINGS 
Your courtesy is requested to help our meeting run smoothly.  If you’ll be kind enough to follow these simple rules, we can make the 
best possible use of time.  Please silence all electronic devices.  Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited 
applause, comments, cheering, foul language, or obscenities.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of 
the City to carry out its meeting or prevents/disrupts others from fully participating in the meeting will not be permitted and offenders 
will be requested to leave the meeting pursuant to Government Code § 54957.9. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
At a City Council meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak when the item 
is ready for discussion.  If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public Comments".  In 
order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to five minutes.  Time shall not be shared/loaned 
from speaker to speaker.  If you wish to request time on an upcoming Council Agenda to present a particular item or matter to the 
Council, you may contact the City Manager at any time before 12:00 noon on the Wednesday immediately preceding the Council 
meeting to so request.  If the matter is within the Council's jurisdiction, and the Council has not taken action or considered the item 
at a recent meeting, the City Manager may place the item on the Agenda.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come 
forward to the speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Ordinance 

An Ordinance is the highest form of action taken by the Council.  It is written law enacted to establish a general or lasting rule 
for the citizens.  Normally, an Ordinance requires two readings at separate Council meetings after which it is adopted.  It is 
then published in the local newspaper and becomes effective thirty days after final passage.  An Ordinance can only be 
repealed or amended by another Ordinance. 

 

Resolution  
A Resolution is a formal written expression of a policy, opinion or desire of the City Council.  It requires only one reading and 
becomes effective on adoption. 

 

Minute Order  
Actions of the Council recorded only in the Minutes taken in all cases where formal Resolution or Ordinance is not needed or 
required.  

 

SUGGESTIONS, INQUIRIES OR COMPLAINTS 
While any citizen may speak directly to the Council concerning suggestions, inquiries or complaints, the City Manager or 
Department Head responsible for the service or work concerned, can usually provide pertinent information or handle the matter 
without delay if a request is made directly to him or her.  If you are not sure which department to call, or whenever you feel the 
matter has not been properly handled, please contact the City Manager at the City Hall, 119 Fox Street, telephone 924-6700, or 
email citymanager@lemoore.com.  



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 

William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 

Council Members 

John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Parks and Recreation 

Department 

Located 435 “C” St. 

Mail to: 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6767 

FAX  (559) 924-6772 

 
Staff Report 

 SS ITEM 2 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director  

Date: November 27, 2013  

Subject: Consideration of Sale, Real Property  
(Lemoore Municipal Golf Course) 

 

 
Discussion: 
 
With the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency all liabilities and assets related to the 
Lemoore Golf Course became the responsibility of the General Fund.  This is cause for 
alarm since the General Fund incurs the liability of providing necessary services to the 
community.  Statistically, recreation plays a significant role in decreasing crime and is 
financially considered a necessity being equal to services such as police and fire 
protection, as well as enterprise services including water quality, sewer, and refuse 
disposal.  To relieve the liability of an escalating payment schedule, Council agreed to 
use $1.4 million of General Fund reserves to minimize expenses. 
 
Prior to Council’s decision the Tachi Yokut Tribe approached the city to have the course 
evaluated by a qualified golf course management appraiser.  The course had not been 
listed “For Sale”.  According to the Tachi-funded appraiser the property and business is 
valued at $3 million. 
 
As community concern grew that the Lemoore Golf Course could be sold and that a 
private party was interested in purchasing it, Council agreed to have a study session 
item to address the concept of selling the municipal golf property and business.  During 
the September 17, 2013 meeting the public voiced their concerns of reasons why and 
why not to sell the golf course.  Other than the total debt of $3.5 million the financial 
data was not discussed since there had not been a formal offer presented to the City.  
In early November City Manager Laws received a formal offer from the Tachi Yokut 
Tribe to purchase the golf course business and property for the amount of $5 million. 
 
On November 19, 2013 during closed session Council directed staff to call two public 
meetings to allow for further discussion prior to bringing this item for action.  These 
meetings are to collect as much information concerning reasons “to sell” or “not to sell” 
the golf course so that the public and Council will have as much information as possible 
prior to making this difficult decision. 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Provided below are financial data and community concerns.  
 
Financial data:   
 
The Lemoore Golf Course is valued at $3 million based on the Tachi Yokut Tribe’s 
appraiser.  The City has a General Fund liability associated with the Lemoore Golf 
Course and property of approximately $3.5 million (see attached debt schedule).  The 
City has received an offer of $5 million for the entire business and asset. 
 
All expenses incurred by the golf course are ultimately in competition against other 
General Fund services such as Police and Fire protection, as well as parks and 
recreation expenses.   
 
Prior to Rhoads Golf, LLC’s management of the golf course, the course had been 
unable to meet the scheduled debt service payments.  This resulted in an average 
annual cost to the city of $60,000 over the previous 7 years.  This amount was paid by 
the Redevelopment Agency and no cost to the General Fund was incurred.   However,  
since the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency, those debt obligations were directly 
tied to the General Fund.  Fortunately, a combination of Rhoads Golf, LLC’s course 
management, Council’s decision to refinance the debt, and public participation, the 
operation has been able to meet its debt service payment over the last two years and is 
projected to meet those obligations this fiscal year.   
 
At this time there is not an asset replacement account to repair or replace assets as 
they fail over time.  This account must be established to account for any emergency or 
planned repairs in the immediate or distant future.  It is recommended that a future 
study session include the funding sources of this account so that it does not directly 
compete with Police or Fire protection.   
  
Public concerns: 
 
Public statements made during the September 17, 2013 meeting: 
“Some things aren’t just about money” 
“We love Rich Rhoads and what he has done for our community golf course” 
“I enjoy playing golf for $8 per month” 
“Seniors can’t afford higher rates” 
 
With numerous financial and social demands it is prudent to ask these questions:  

 Should the City of Lemoore consider selling the municipal golf course? If not, 
are there other options for its operation and maintenance?  The Council has 
received an offer from Rhoads Golf, LLC to lease the golf course, which will 
be discussed during closed session. 

 Should the City consider multiple management models and the pros and 
cons of each before considering the sale of the golf course?   

 Does the value of owning and controlling the golf course outweigh the risk of 
future capital costs and or future competition?   

   
 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

The following questions have also been brought to staff from our citizens: 
 Why would the City sell an asset that they would eventually own?   

The city is in a position to sell the course for more than its worth and more 
than is owed on it.  If there is competition from a new golf course, the course 
will be worth less than what is owed on it and less than it is worth today.   

 Where would the money go if the golf course was sold?   
Use of the funds would be determined by Council; however, the money from 
the sale would be deposited into the General Fund reserves. 

 Who benefits from the sale?   
The people of Lemoore are relieved of the debt and liability of a golf course 
business and any repairs or improvements will not compete against other 
General Fund services.   

 Who is giving Council financial advice concerning the sale?   
City Staff and the City Attorney. 

 Will California Government Code Section 37420 - 37430 be followed?   
Yes 

 Will the property always remain a public golf course?   
Negotiable 

 Will the new owners continue to have monthly passes for individuals, families 
and seniors and will the current rates remain the same?   

 Will the new owners keep the current staff in their current positions?  And if 
so, for how long?   

 What type of immediate capital improvements will be made to the golf 
course?   

 Would the buyer commit to continuing to promote youth golf and commit to 
the relationship with the Lemoore Junior Open?  

 Will current relationships with West Hills College, Lemoore High School, 
Riverdale High School and Washington Union High School be honored?   
The total annual revenue from these commitments is $7,500.00.  

 Will the course still be available to the numerous community groups and 
service organizations for annual fundraising tournaments?  

 
James Snead, Chief Financial Officer for the Tachi Palace Hotel and Casino will be in 
attendance Tuesday evening to answer some of the above questions and any other 
questions that may arise regarding the proposed sale of the Lemoore Municipal Golf 
Course. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The budget impact is not available at this time.  This could vary based on Council’s 
recommendation. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
For Council to encourage public testimony, discuss the current and future financial 
sustainability of the Lemoore Golf Course and give staff direction on how to proceed. 
 
 



CITY RELATED DEBT                      Balance
Estimated 

Payoff Date Liquid Assets Long Term Golf Course Payments if Debt is paid over terms of agreements:
General Fund Loan-Primary Debt 1,435,000$  11/1/2020 Fund 045:  City Golf Course Operations

Cash 45,761$   General Fund Primary Debt
Successor Agency to the Former Lemoore 
Redevelopment Agency Debt (6-30-13 Balance) 1,665,519$  Capital Improvement Fund-Reserved 72,455$   Principal 1,435,000$  
Estimated Interest July-Oct (.24% LAIF) 1,666$         Additional Interest 88,717$      

Estimated Balance 10-31-13 1,667,185$  6/30/2027 Fund 073:  City Golf Course Capital Fund 1,523,717$  
Cash 15,456$   

Other Debt to Successor Agency to the Former 
Lemoore Redevelopment Agency

Successor Agency to the Former Lemoore 
Redevelopment Agency Debt

14th Hole Improvement Loan (5.75%) 266,181$     6/1/2017 Fund 046:  Rhoads Golf Operating Leases Principal & Interest as of 10-31-13 1,667,185$  
Golf Cart Barn Loan (5.75%) 114,575$     12/1/2016 Capital Improvement Fund-Reserved 20,785$  Additonal Interest 211,827$    

Balance 10-31-13 380,757$     1,879,011$  
Total Available Cash to Apply to Debt 154,457$

Grand Total All City Related Debt 3,482,941$  
Other Debt to Successor Agency to the Former 
Lemoore Redevelopment Agency

Other Assets 14th Hole Improvement Loan
Fund 046:  Rhoads Golf Operating Leases Principal 266,181$     

Rhoads Golf Operating Leases: Inventory-Merchandise 56,435$  Additional Interest 31,145$      

Golf Carts 145,756$     6/30/2016 297,326$     
John Deere Tractor 7,310$         Total Liquid + Other Assets 210,892$

153,066$     Golf Cart Barn Loan
Principal 114,575$     

Additional Interest 11,618$      

126,193$     
Finance Director Recommended Payoff Sequence
Other Debt to Successor Agency to the Former 
Lemooore Redevelopment Agency 380,757$     Total Payments if paid over term of agreement 3,826,248$  
General Fund Primary Debt 1,435,000$  

Sub Total 1,815,757$  
Successor Agency to the Former Lemoore 
Redevelopment Agency Debt 1,667,185$  

3,482,941$  

Lemoore Municipal Golf Course
As of 10-31-13



 1

Item 3A 
 
 

Minutes of the Study Session of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

November 19, 2013 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
At 5:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 

 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal, 
Rodarmel; Acting City Manager/Police Chief Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Finance Director Silva; Parks and 
Recreation Director Simonson; Administrative Analyst Apone; Chief Deputy 
City Clerk Austin 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 There was no comment. 
 
DISCUSSION – Impact Fees 

Analyst Apone discussed Council’s support for an impact fee deferral program 
with a rebate for sales tax.  Council provided direction in six areas:  1) length 
of time for deferral – 3 years; 2) maximum percentage of deferral – 25%; 3)  
percentage of sales tax credited – 50/50 split; 4) charging interest – interest 
will be charged at the LAIF rate; 5) indexing of current fees – yes; and 6) the 
sunset period for program – 2 years.  The program will be brought back for 
approval at the January 7th meeting. 

 
CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Tom Reed spoke regarding sale of the Golf Course. 
 

ADJOURN TO LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 
At 6:11 p.m., the Council adjourned to closed session regarding existing 
litigation and real property negotiations. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:   
 At 6:50 p.m., Council adjourned to the Regular Meeting. 

 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the  

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
November 19, 2013 

 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

ATTENDANCE: 
Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal, 
Rodarmel; Acting City Manager/Police Chief Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Finance Director Silva; Parks and 
Recreation Director Simonson; Chief Deputy City Clerk Austin 

 
ANNOUNCEMENT: 

Mayor Siegel announced that the sale of the Golf Course was discussed 
during closed session because the City has now received a formal offer.  The 
City will request permission to disclose the terms of the offer and will discuss 
the item during the Study Sessions on December 3rd and 17th.   
 
He also reiterated that Council voted 4-1 to appoint Jeff Laws as City Manager 
at the last meeting and that the item on the Agenda tonight is the Employment 
Agreement. 

  
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Dave Brown spoke regarding the e-mail sent by Mr. Siegel and presented a 
written statement for the record. 
Syd Smyth spoke and requested written responses to three items: 
1) Who authorized the expansion from the original design of the CMC 

Remodel Project in the CIP Budget? 
 Laws, Wlaschin and Simonson made the decision to amend the original plans 
to the CMC remodel due to HVAC duct work installation.  It was determined 
that adding the extra square footage at that time could be done for pennies on 
the dollar. 
2) Will Jeff Laws publicly denounce the content of the e-mail sent by Siegel? 
The City Attorney has directed the City to make no comments regarding the e-
mail. 
3) Was the City credit card used to pay for dinner on the night of the stroll for 

Siegel, Laws, Gordon, Simonson and the City Attorney, and was the City 
Attorney on the clock?  

 Siegel, Gordon and Laws had dinner socially.  Neither Simonson nor the City 
Attorney was present and the City credit card was not used. 
Noor Memon spoke in opposition to the appointment of Jeff Laws as City 
Manager. 
Kathleen Hall Elias spoke in favor of the appointment of Jeff Laws as City 
Manager. 
Sheila Taylor spoke in favor of the appointment of Jeff Laws as City Manager. 
Michael Montalbano spoke in favor of the appointment of Jeff Laws as City 
Manager. 
Dwight Young questioned Jeff Laws’ qualifications as City Manager. 
Glenda Dwyer spoke in favor of the appointment of Jeff Laws as City Manager. 
 
Mayor Siegel said that the answers to Mr. Smyth’s questions would be 
presented as part of the minutes. 
 
Council Member Neal spoke in opposition of the appointment of Jeff Laws as 
City Manager.  He asked what message is being sent to the community by 
hiring someone who did not meet the minimum qualifications for the position.  
He stated our community wants someone who is qualified to do the job. 



 3

Council Member Gordon spoke in favor of the appointment of Jeff Laws as 
City Manager because he is addressing the Council’s goals of accountability, 
customer service and being more business friendly.   
 
Council Member Rodarmel spoke in favor of the appointment of Jeff Laws as 
City Manager based on the organizational skills and personnel leadership he 
has shown as Acting City Manager. 
 
Council Member Wynne spoke in favor of the appointment of Jeff Laws as City 
Manager.  She stated he has completed seven months of on the job testing for 
the position and has already made a lot of changes.  She looks forward to 
working with him. 
 
Mayor Siegel spoke in favor of the appointment of Jeff Laws as City Manager.  
He believes he has removed interdepartmental boundaries and increased 
morale, demonstrating his ability to do the job. 
 
Mayor Siegel announced that he will be available in Council Chambers from 
3:00 – 5:00 p.m. on Thursdays. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 
Council Member Neal requested that Items E, F, and G be pulled from the 
Consent Calendar for separate consideration. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council approve the following Consent Calendar: 
A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – November 5, 2013 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – November 14, 2013 
C. Approval – Street Closure – Christmas Tree Raising Ceremony – 

December 1, 2013 
D. Approval – Public Nuisance and Weed Abatement – Resolution 2013-28 
H. Approval – Budget Amendment – Sewer Pump Emergency Purchase 
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 

 
E. Approval – CNG Maintenance Area Bid Award Correction 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council approve the Bid Correction for the CNG 
Maintenance Area. 
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 
 
F. Approval – Quarterly Investment Report – Quarter Ending September 30, 

2013 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council approve the Quarterly Investment Report. 
 
Ayes:  Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 
 
 



 4

G. Approval – City Manager Employment Agreement 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council approve the City Manger Employment 
Agreement. 
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Rodarmel, Siegel 
Noes:  Neal 
 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Cedar Lane and Larish Street Alignments: 

David Jacobs of Quad Knopf discussed the three options available for the 
alignments.  He stated Option 3 is the best option because it will impact the 
least number of residences and Caltrans will not require a median as 
previously thought.   

 

Council Member Gordon asked that the item be tabled to a later meeting so 
that property owner James Grantham could be present. 

 

The following spoke regarding the item: 

Michael Montalbano 

John Ince 

 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council table the item. 
 
Ayes:  Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 
  

DEPARTMENT/CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 
City Manager Laws stated that leaf pick-up began November 18th.  Captain 
Darrell Smith of the Hanford Police Department will be filling in as Acting 
Police Chief starting November 20th. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 
Council Member Gordon stated he will be attending a meeting at NAS 
Lemoore on November 20th regarding their General Plan update, along with 
Laws, Brandt and Wlaschin.  He also would like to talk to the City Attorney 
about closed session information being disclosed to the newspaper.  He wants 
anyone who discloses confidential information to be held accountable. 
 
Council Member Neal set the matter straight regarding the dinner at Reyna’s 
and said that Mayor Siegel, City Manager Laws and Council Member Gordon 
were present.  He also would like to differentiate himself from the Council on 
the situation in the media. 
 
Council Member Rodarmel relayed a safety concern from the American Legion 
regarding the Veteran’s Building 
 
Council Member Wynne commented on the Holiday Stroll and was pleased 
with the participation.   



 5

Mayor Siegel mentioned that a proclamation was presented to the newly 
formed Kings Lions Club over the weekend.  He reiterated his availability to 
the public in Council Chambers on Thursdays from 3:00 to 5:00 p.m.   
 
As there were no closed session items to discuss, Council did not adjourn to 
closed session. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 9:04 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved the 3rd day of December, 2013. 
 
Full digital audio recording is available. 
 
              
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Brooke Austin, Chief Deputy City Clerk 



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/27/2013 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4211 − CITY COUNCIL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21 10312013     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL 2,736.30 .00 PROF SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 2,736.30 .00

TOTAL    CITY COUNCIL .00 2,736.30 .00

RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:48 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 3B



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4213 − CITY MANAGER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             682049466001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     87.71               .00 TONER
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             87.71               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             10312013     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL              2,696.22               .00 PROF SERVICES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             2013−08      6226 SUSAN WELLS                     300.00               .00 PROF SERVICES OCT
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,996.22               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 37.20               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
5 /14 11/27/13 21             000004878943 5516 AT&T                             28.58               .00 559−924−9003
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             65.78               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                594.84               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            594.84               .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER                                            .00          3,744.55               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4215 − FINANCE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             13121        5753 LEARNCOM.LLC                     45.00               .00 MOVE EXTENSIONS
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             45.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             000004878943 5516 AT&T                             17.87               .00 559−924−9003
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             17.87               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                142.57               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            142.57               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00            205.44               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             161720       0910 SNAP ON TOOLS                    59.93               .00 SWIVEL JOINT/SOCKET
5 /14 11/27/13 21             CALEM10144   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                102.17               .00 GLOVES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             7655084      6206 WILBUR−ELLIS COM                360.99               .00 PESTICIDE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             CALEM10187   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                761.91               .00 LARGE/XL GLOVES
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,285.00               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     T1326 DANNY COSTA                    555.00               .00 WEEKEND RENTAL ATTEND
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     6283 ERIK SURWILL                    625.50               .00 REC CENTER CLEANING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0063982      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 50.00               .00 41 CINNAMON DR
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0063980      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 70.00               .00 210 FOX ST
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0063979      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 70.00               .00 711 CINNAMON DR
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0063978      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 70.00               .00 119 FOX ST
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0063986      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 70.00               .00 657 FOX ST
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0063983      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 75.00               .00 435 C ST
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14977        T909 ASSOCIATED SOILS              4,768.27               .00 BROWNFIELD CLEAN UP
5 /14 11/27/13 21             32H1306−IN   6309 SOCIAL VOCATIONA              4,500.00               .00 AUGUST SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         10,853.77               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 32.83               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
5 /14 11/27/13 21             OCT−NOV/13   0423 THE GAS COMPANY                  72.19               .00 10/18−11/19
5 /14 11/27/13 21             OCT−NOV13    0423 THE GAS COMPANY                 434.99               .00 10/16−11/15
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            540.01               .00

4340S    STREETS−UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             NOV360627227 0363 P G & E                       5,833.14               .00 10/16/2013−11/14/2013
5 /14 11/27/13 21             NOV678006815 0363 P G & E                          88.80               .00 10/12/13−11/12/13
TOTAL    STREETS−UTILITIES                                       .00          5,921.94               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 49.64               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             49.64               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00         18,650.36               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  7.53               .00 PEREZ/NATIONAL NIGHT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  2.14               .00 ROSSI/KEYS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  4.71               .00 FRATUS/CANOPY REPAIR
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  9.64               .00 ROSSI/KEYS
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             24.02               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             65409        6115 EMPLOYEE RELATIO                 36.00               .00 BACKGROUND CHECK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             OCTSERVICES  0772 COUNTY OF KINGS               4,304.36               .00 10/01/2013−10/31/2013
5 /14 11/27/13 21             001−001150   5814 CITY OF HANFORD              13,902.61               .00 DISPATCH SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         18,242.97               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 14.00               .00 WALLACE/TRAIN LUNCH
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 14.00               .00 GONSALVES/TRAIN LUNCH
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 14.00               .00 AVELAR/TRAIN LUNCH
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 40.00               .00 CHANEY/CLEARS LUNCH
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 30.00               .00 ROCHA/CLEARS LUNCH
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 40.00               .00 OCHOA/CLEARS LUNCH
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 15.65               .00 AVELAR/TRAIN LUNCH
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00            167.65               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             16978        2365 SPECTRUM BUSINES                982.66               .00 TRAFFIC CITATION BOOK
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            982.66               .00

4360     TRAINING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     6341 MICHAEL JOHNS                    42.00               .00 REFUND/TRAIN/M.JOHNS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 21.00               .00 PESCATORE/TRAIN LUNCH
5 /14 11/27/13 21             AUG−OCT      0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 28.00               .00 JOHNS/TRAIN LUNCH
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00             91.00               .00

4825AR   MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE 
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     T667 MICHAEL KENDALL                 295.49               .00 REFUND/AIRLINE/K−9
TOTAL    MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE                                .00            295.49               .00

4840AR   AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE 
5 /14 11/27/13 21 6717    −01 PE038        5487 MCPEEK’S DODGE O             26,185.00        −26,185.00 2014 DODGE CHARGER POLICE
5 /14 11/27/13 21 6717    −02 PE038        5487 MCPEEK’S DODGE O              1,963.88         −1,963.87 TAX
5 /14 11/27/13 21 6717    −03 PE038        5487 MCPEEK’S DODGE O                  8.75             −8.75 CA TIRE TAX
TOTAL    AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE                                .00         28,157.63        −28,157.62

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00         47,961.42        −28,157.62

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4222 − FIRE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             07879        0061 BOB’S AUTO PARTS                101.80               .00 ROOF BAG SUPPLIES
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            101.80               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             001−001150   5814 CITY OF HANFORD              10,426.95               .00 DISPATCH SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         10,426.95               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 10.93               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             10.93               .00

4365     WEED ABATEMENT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11222013     5758 MARK FERNANDES                2,750.00               .00 WEED ABATEMENT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11222013     5758 MARK FERNANDES                  675.00               .00 WEED ABATEMENT
TOTAL    WEED ABATEMENT                                          .00          3,425.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                240.37               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            240.37               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00         14,205.05               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4224 − BUILDING INSPECTION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 18.17               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             18.17               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 52.86               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             52.86               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00             71.03               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4230 − PUBLIC WORKS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             10312013     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                462.00               .00 PROF SERVICES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             10312013     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                341.71               .00 PROF SERVICES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             5617         0463 VIDEO INSPECTION              1,508.80               .00 TELEVISION INSPECTION
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,312.51               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0000151718   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                126.65               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0000151679   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 86.66               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             0000151678   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 94.21               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            307.52               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 71.61               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             71.61               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 42.50               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                231.14               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            273.64               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00          2,965.28               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             23601        6150 CLASSIC SOCCER                   15.05               .00 ROYAL GILDAN T’S
5 /14 11/27/13 21             5587         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                   64.50               .00 CHRISTMAS BANNERS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             5597         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                  133.30               .00 YELLOW SAFETY JACKETS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             5448         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                   48.38               .00 BUSINESS CARDS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             5457         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                   86.00               .00 4−T SHIRTS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             5364         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                   12.90               .00 YARD STAKES/GOLF SIGN
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            360.13               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     6290 DANTE AGUILAR                   250.00               .00 SOCCER REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     5827 MUSIC SPECTRUM E                350.00               .00 DJ AND DANCE SHOW
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     T1586 JOSE PEREZ                     575.00               .00 SOCCER REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     T1547 TRENTON WILLIAMS               141.00               .00 FOOTBALL REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     5962 JASON GLASPIE                   274.75               .00 BOXING NOVEMBER
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     5935 JOE JIMMEYE                     173.00               .00 FOOTBALL REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     T1326 DANNY COSTA                    186.00               .00 FOOTBALL REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     5614 CHRISTINA DE LA                  70.00               .00 ZUMBA−NOVEMBER
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     T1320 THEO DANIELS                    87.00               .00 FOOTBALL REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     0040 LARRY AVILA                     167.00               .00 FOOTBALL REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     T1326 DANNY COSTA                    475.00               .00 WEEKEND RENTAL ATTEND
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     T1337 DEMONT LORING                  200.00               .00 FOOTBALL REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             65409        6115 EMPLOYEE RELATIO                112.00               .00 BACKGROUND CHECK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     6291 SANTIAGO COVARRU                450.00               .00 SOCCER REFEREE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11212013     T1444 JOE CORREIA                    714.00               .00 SOCCER ATTENDANT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     6324 EDUARDO SANCHEZ                  48.00               .00 SPORTS ATTENDANT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     6322 MELANIE TATCO                    52.50               .00 KIDS ZUMBA−NOV
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     5587 BRENT RUSSELL PA                196.00               .00 PHOTOGRAPHY NOV
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     6229 TARA RODRIGUEZ                   51.80               .00 KINDERMUSIK NOV
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     6257 RYAN ROCHA                    5,563.50               .00 CROSSFIT NOV
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     T1554 STEVEN ROSAS                   108.00               .00 SPORTS ATTENDANT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11262013     5235 STATE DISBURSEME                274.75               .00 NOV CHILD SUPPORT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     T1329 JENNIFER SHELDON               198.80               .00 PEE WEE FIT−OCT/NOV
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     T1502 SANTOS MAYA                    152.00               .00 SPORTS ATTENDANT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     5674 JENNIFER MELENDE                409.50               .00 CHEERLEADING NOV
5 /14 11/27/13 21             1374         6099 BOCKYN,LLC                      250.00               .00 DECEMBER MAINTENANCE
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11252013     6280 CASEY VENEMA                    157.50               .00 DRAMA NOV
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         11,687.10               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                132.87               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            132.87               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                671.00               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            671.00               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00         12,851.10               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00        103,390.53        −28,157.62

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 027 − TE/STP(RTPA)EXCHANGE FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4727B − 2013/15  STREET OVERLAYS 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
5 /14 11/27/13 21             72925        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              8,600.45               .00 CIP OVERLAY
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          8,600.45               .00

TOTAL    2013/15  STREET OVERLAYS                                .00          8,600.45               .00

TOTAL    TE/STP(RTPA)EXCHANGE FUND                               .00          8,600.45               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ
BUDGET UNIT − 4726M − VINE ST SIDEWALKS/MEADOW 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
5 /14 11/27/13 21             826662       0276 KLEINFELDER INC.                366.00               .00 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00            366.00               .00

TOTAL    VINE ST SIDEWALKS/MEADOW                                .00            366.00               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ
BUDGET UNIT − 4726N − DOOR FOR AIR RIFLE RANGE 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
5 /14 11/27/13 21             21949        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 5,053.28               .00 RIFLE RANGE−ELEC.WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22165        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,316.78               .00 RIFLE RANGE−ELEC.WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             5459         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                   53.75               .00 AIR RIFLE SIGN
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          6,423.81               .00

TOTAL    DOOR FOR AIR RIFLE RANGE                                .00          6,423.81               .00

TOTAL    CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ                                  .00          6,789.81               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 030 − GAS TAX SECTION 2106
BUDGET UNIT − 4733 − GAS TAX SECTION  2106

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             72978        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                107.55               .00 STREET PROGRAM
5 /14 11/27/13 21             72983        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              8,187.21               .00 STREET MAINTENANCE
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          8,294.76               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX SECTION  2106                                   .00          8,294.76               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX SECTION 2106                                    .00          8,294.76               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 033 − LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4723B − SLURRY SEALS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
5 /14 11/27/13 21             72924        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              4,675.97               .00 CIP SLURRY SEAL
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          4,675.97               .00

TOTAL    SLURRY SEALS                                            .00          4,675.97               .00

TOTAL    LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND                               .00          4,675.97               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 034 − GAS TAX SECTION 2103
BUDGET UNIT − 4734A − 2013/15 RECLAMITE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
5 /14 11/27/13 21             72923        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              1,196.73               .00 CIP RECLAMITE
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          1,196.73               .00

TOTAL    2013/15 RECLAMITE                                       .00          1,196.73               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX SECTION 2103                                    .00          1,196.73               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 38.65               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3918−172169  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                 21.97               .00 AIR FILTER
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3918−172863  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                214.98               .00 2−CANS REFRIGERANT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             F635078      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                 41.43               .00 RESISTOR−FAN SPEED
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            317.03               .00

4220F    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL
5 /14 11/27/13 21             103125       0043 BURROWS & CASTAD             13,373.98               .00 CARDLOCK STATEMENT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             111502       0043 BURROWS & CASTAD             11,816.13               .00 CARDLOCK STATEMENT
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL                                 .00         25,190.11               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             4−233733     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 162.48               .00 BATTERY
5 /14 11/27/13 21             63972        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF                  15.69               .00 HANDLE BRACKET
5 /14 11/27/13 21             F634068      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                157.49               .00 END TIE RODS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             50008978     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                 93.86               .00 FAN/MOTOR
5 /14 11/27/13 21             50008884     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                 63.19               .00 ACTUATOR
5 /14 11/27/13 21             50008762     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                 68.80               .00 BLANK KEY
5 /14 11/27/13 21             25770        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                 10.54               .00 SCREW/NUTS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             F634752      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                202.32               .00 CROSS TUBE ASSY
5 /14 11/27/13 21             5437         0370 PHIL’S LOCKSMITH                  6.45               .00 DUPLICATE KEYS
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            780.82               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                  4.89               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              4.89               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             649347       6136 DAVE’S UPHOLSTER                265.00               .00 BACK SEAT REPAIR
5 /14 11/27/13 21             FR103262     0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                253.00               .00 REPAIRS UNIT 106
5 /14 11/27/13 21             4536         2956 JONES COLLISION               1,897.71               .00 REPAIR UNIT 327
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          2,415.71               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         28,708.56               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         28,708.56               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             10312013     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                647.87               .00 PROF SERVICES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             11152013     5809 RBC CAPITAL MARK              2,586.32               .00 REMARKETING SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,234.19               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE−CITY                                        .00          3,234.19               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE − CITY                                      .00          3,234.19               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 049B − SEWER/STRM DRN GRANT FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4747A − 19TH AVE/198 INTERCHANGE 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22134        0388 REED ELECTRIC                    65.00               .00 DISCONNECT ST LIGHT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             823490       0276 KLEINFELDER INC.              1,149.00               .00 CIP 19TH/198
5 /14 11/27/13 21             826663       0276 KLEINFELDER INC.                445.50               .00 CIP 19TH/198
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          1,659.50               .00

TOTAL    19TH AVE/198 INTERCHANGE                                .00          1,659.50               .00

TOTAL    SEWER/STRM DRN GRANT FUND                               .00          1,659.50               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:49                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 050 − WATER
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             88943        0428 STONEY’S SAND &                 193.50               .00 TREATED HUMUS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             FO508496     6058 UNIVAR                        1,487.75               .00 SODIUM,MILL FEE, FUEL
5 /14 11/27/13 21             FO786924     6058 UNIVAR                          925.71               .00 SODIUM,MILL FEE,FUEL
5 /14 11/27/13 21             FO787615     6058 UNIVAR                        2,232.78               .00 SODIUM,MILL FEE,FUEL
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          4,839.74               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             001−001150   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SERVICES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A326600      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A326896      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 17.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A326883      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 90.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A326882      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325541      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325373      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A324467      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 29.75               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A324465      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A324460      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 15.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A324463      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 29.75               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A324454      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A324455      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 15.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A324452      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 15.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A324389      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325031      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 10.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325176      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 10.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325222      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325718      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325710      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325670      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A326314      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                170.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A325938      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A326339      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A326518      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 29.75               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A327270      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             A327380      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          4,919.40               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             74245        5546 INFOSEND                        709.50               .00 H20 LEVELS INSERTS
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            709.50               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             NOV826001193 0363 P G & E                     101,774.22               .00 10/04/13−10/15/13
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 20.23               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
5 /14 11/27/13 21             OCT−NOV/13   0423 THE GAS COMPANY                  65.11               .00 10/18−11/19
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00        101,859.56               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 050 − WATER
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 73.81               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             73.81               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00        112,402.01               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 050 − WATER
BUDGET UNIT − 4251 − UTILITY OFFICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             13121        5753 LEARNCOM.LLC                     45.00               .00 MOVE EXTENSIONS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             73650        5546 INFOSEND                      3,455.38               .00 OCTOBER BILLING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             10312013     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                112.00               .00 PROF SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,612.38               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             000004878943 5516 AT&T                             13.12               .00 559−924−9003
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             13.12               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                142.57               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            142.57               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00          3,768.07               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00        116,170.08               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 056 − REFUSE
BUDGET UNIT − 4256 − REFUSE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             001−001150   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,475.65               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 38.17               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             38.17               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 20.51               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             20.51               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00          3,534.33               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00          3,534.33               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             1274329      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                  48.15               .00 HR SHEET/HR FLAT
5 /14 11/27/13 21             1273707      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                  36.89               .00 ALUMINUM ARC ROD
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             85.04               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3308029      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTE WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3316063      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                110.00               .00 WASTE WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3322018      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                630.00               .00 WASTE WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3309040      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                305.00               .00 WASTE WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3322016      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                170.00               .00 WASTE WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3322017      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                210.00               .00 WASTE WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             3317042      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                 40.00               .00 WASTE WATER TESTING
5 /14 11/27/13 21             001−001150   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          5,040.65               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             10312013     2344 STATE WATER RESO                230.00               .00 RENEWAL FEE
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00            230.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             NOV96289125  0363 P G & E                           7.88               .00 11/01/13−11/12/2013
5 /14 11/27/13 21             971442489    0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 26.15               .00 OCT 5−NOV 4, 2013
5 /14 11/27/13 21             NOV489007642 0363 P G & E                      26,578.21               .00 10/01/2013−10/29/2013
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         26,612.24               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                128.93               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            128.93               .00

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00         32,096.86               .00

TOTAL    SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00         32,096.86               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 065 − STREETS CAP − EAST
BUDGET UNIT − 4721B − CEDAR LANE EXT EAST

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
5 /14 11/27/13 21             73664        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              3,028.41               .00 CIP CEDAR LANE
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          3,028.41               .00

TOTAL    CEDAR LANE EXT EAST                                     .00          3,028.41               .00

TOTAL    STREETS CAP − EAST                                      .00          3,028.41               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   26
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 068 − GENERAL FACILITIES CAP
BUDGET UNIT − 4714B − DEPTS OFFICE SPACE − CMC 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
5 /14 11/27/13 21             769995       6338 GAYNORS FLOOR CA                490.00               .00 CMC PH 2 CLEAN EPOXY
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22145        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,592.50               .00 CMC PH2−ELECTRIC WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22052        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   236.69               .00 CMC PH2−ELECTRIC WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             21948        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   325.73               .00 CMC PH2−ELECTRIC WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22187        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 2,257.94               .00 CMC PH2−ELECTRIC WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22146        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,583.77               .00 CMC PH2−ELECTRIC WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22128        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   896.04               .00 CMC PH2−ELECTRIC WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22121        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   270.64               .00 CMC PH1/2−ELEC. WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21 6743    −01 10573        6340 WCM DBA TEC−SPEC              3,406.00         −3,406.00 RESTROOM PARTITIONS
5 /14 11/27/13 21 6743    −02 10573        6340 WCM DBA TEC−SPEC                 96.00            −96.00 ALUMINUM POST
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00         11,155.31         −3,502.00

TOTAL    DEPTS OFFICE SPACE − CMC                                .00         11,155.31         −3,502.00

TOTAL    GENERAL FACILITIES CAP                                  .00         11,155.31         −3,502.00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   27
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 074 − PARKS & RECREATION CAP
BUDGET UNIT − 4740G − REC OFFICE SP − CMC PH3

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
5 /14 11/27/13 21             2642         5849 BURGOS AIR CONDI              2,368.98               .00 CMC PHASE 3−DUCT WORK
5 /14 11/27/13 21             35174        3045 HAYES GARAGE DOO              2,480.00               .00 CMC PH3−SHUTTERS
5 /14 11/27/13 21             13121        5753 LEARNCOM.LLC                    643.02               .00 EXPANSION CABINET
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          5,492.00               .00

TOTAL    REC OFFICE SP − CMC PH3                                 .00          5,492.00               .00

TOTAL    PARKS & RECREATION CAP                                  .00          5,492.00               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   28
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD
BUDGET UNIT − 4801 − LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                   .24               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00               .24               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22124        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   196.61               .00 SPRNKLER CLOCK REPAIR
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            196.61               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD                                   .00            196.85               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   29
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD
BUDGET UNIT − 4808 − LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             22133        0388 REED ELECTRIC                    65.00               .00 SPRNKLER CLOCK REPAIR
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00             65.00               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL                               .00             65.00               .00

TOTAL    LLMD/PFMD                                               .00            261.85               .00

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   30
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:08:44                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 085 − PBIA
BUDGET UNIT − 4270 − PBIA

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /14 11/27/13 21             14485190     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 14.18               .00 PRINTER/COPIER
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             14.18               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /14 11/27/13 21             OCT SERVICES 5563 RUSTY DEROUIN                   300.00               .00 DOWNTOWN PLANTER BOX
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            300.00               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            314.18               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            314.18               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        338,603.52        −31,659.62

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:08:50                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 10:11:39                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1788 MELISSA FOREST                                        20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/FOREST
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1785 WILLIAM HENDRICKSON                                   20.00  REFND/UNIFRM/HENDRICK
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              5829 JONES BOYS LLC                                        118.25  CHEER SHIRTS
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              5829 JONES BOYS LLC                                        645.00  SWEATSHIRTS/DNCE LOGO
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1796 KAWANA AKINES                                         20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/AKINES
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1782 SALLY MORENO                                          20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/MORENO
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1783 DONZIA MORALES                                        20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/MORALES
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1784 MICHELE MENDES                                        40.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/MENDES
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1786 AMANDA MARKLE                                         10.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/MARKLE
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1790 ASHLEY OLIVEIRA                                       20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/OLIVEIR
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1564 PAULA PEREZ                                           40.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/PEREZ
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1787 VERONICA PINEDO                                       20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/PINEDO
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1795 KRIS RANSDELL                                         10.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/RANSDEL
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1797 SHARON KENDALL−FERRA                                 302.00  REFUND/S.KENDALL−FERR
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1778 FERNANDO REYNOSA                                       1.00  REFUND/ROOF PERMIT
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1781 KELLY STONE−VANNATTA                                  30.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/STONE
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1794 JULIA THOMAS                                          20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/THOMAS
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1779 FRANCISCO FABIAN TOR                                  20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/TORRES
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1791 EUGENE CHESTER                                        20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/CHESTER
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1792 ELVIA CAMPOS                                          20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/CAMPOS
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1372 KRISTI EMERSON                                        20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/EMERSON
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T812 MARY JANE VENEGAS                                      20.00  REFUND/UNFRM/VENEGAS
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1780 SARAH ZUBIRI                                          20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/ZUBIRI
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1793 JENNIFER BUSTOS                                       20.00  REFUND/UNIFRM/BUSTOS
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00          1,496.25

2243     CALIF.BSASF. SB1473
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1778 FERNANDO REYNOSA                     1.00                    REFUND/ROOF PERMIT
TOTAL    CALIF.BSASF. SB1473                                                  1.00               .00

2248     RECREATION  IN/OUT
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1788 MELISSA FOREST                      20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/FOREST
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1785 WILLIAM HENDRICKSON                 20.00                    REFND/UNIFRM/HENDRICK
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              5829 JONES BOYS LLC                      118.25                    CHEER SHIRTS
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              5829 JONES BOYS LLC                      645.00                    SWEATSHIRTS/DNCE LOGO
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1796 KAWANA AKINES                       20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/AKINES
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1782 SALLY MORENO                        20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/MORENO
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1783 DONZIA MORALES                      20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/MORALES
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1784 MICHELE MENDES                      40.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/MENDES
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1786 AMANDA MARKLE                       10.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/MARKLE
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1790 ASHLEY OLIVEIRA                     20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/OLIVEIR
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1564 PAULA PEREZ                         40.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/PEREZ
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1787 VERONICA PINEDO                     20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/PINEDO
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1795 KRIS RANSDELL                       10.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/RANSDEL
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1797 SHARON KENDALL−FERRA               302.00                    REFUND/S.KENDALL−FERR
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1781 KELLY STONE−VANNATTA                30.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/STONE
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1794 JULIA THOMAS                        20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/THOMAS

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:11:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 10:11:39                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2248     RECREATION  IN/OUT        (cont’d)
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1779 FRANCISCO FABIAN TOR                20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/TORRES
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1791 EUGENE CHESTER                      20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/CHESTER
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1792 ELVIA CAMPOS                        20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/CAMPOS
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1372 KRISTI EMERSON                      20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/EMERSON
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T812 MARY JANE VENEGAS                    20.00                    REFUND/UNFRM/VENEGAS
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1780 SARAH ZUBIRI                        20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/ZUBIRI
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1793 JENNIFER BUSTOS                     20.00                    REFUND/UNIFRM/BUSTOS
TOTAL    RECREATION  IN/OUT                                               1,495.25               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                     1,496.25          1,496.25

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:11:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 10:11:39                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 090 − TRUST & AGENCY

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1778 FERNANDO REYNOSA                                        .50  REFUND/ROOF PERMIT
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00               .50

2256     STRONG MOTION
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              T1778 FERNANDO REYNOSA                      .50                    REFUND/ROOF PERMIT
TOTAL    STRONG MOTION                                                         .50               .00

TOTAL    TRUST & AGENCY                                                        .50               .50

TOTAL REPORT                                                              1,496.75          1,496.75

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:11:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 10:12:14                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’1011’ and ’2021’AND transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

1550     PREPAID EXPENSE
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   19,152.55                    VISA BANKCARD
TOTAL    PREPAID EXPENSE                                                 19,152.55               .00

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /14 11/27/13  21              3022 FIRST BANKCARD                                     19,152.55  VISA BANKCARD
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         19,152.55

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                    19,152.55         19,152.55

TOTAL REPORT                                                             19,152.55         19,152.55

         RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:12:14                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/27/2013                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 10:10:41                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch=’AC120313’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 001 − GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3040     BUILDING PERMITS
   5 /14 11/27/13 21 0        11212013     T1778 FERNANDO REYNOSA              −105.00                   REFUND/ROOF PERMIT
TOTAL    BUILDING PERMITS                                        .00           −105.00               .00

3625     CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL
   5 /14 11/27/13 21 0        11212013     T427 ALMA ZAVALA                    −150.00                   REFUND/A. ZALVALA
   5 /14 11/27/13 21 0        11212013     T1646 NEREIDA ROSAS                 −150.00                   REFUND/N.ROSAS
TOTAL    CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL                                 .00           −300.00               .00

3630     GENERAL PLAN UPDATE FEE
   5 /14 11/27/13 21 0        11212013     T1778 FERNANDO REYNOSA                − .64                   REFUND/ROOF PERMIT
TOTAL    GENERAL PLAN UPDATE FEE                                 .00             − .64               .00

3635     TECHNOLOGY FEE
   5 /14 11/27/13 21 0        11212013     T1778 FERNANDO REYNOSA                − .32                   REFUND/ROOF PERMIT
TOTAL    TECHNOLOGY FEE                                          .00             − .32               .00

3681     RECREATION FEES
   5 /14 11/27/13 21 0        11202013     T1789 LEONARD COTTON                 −20.00                   REFUND/UNIFRM/COTTON
   5 /14 11/27/13 21 0        11202013     T1367 CANDICE MCENROE                −40.00                   REFUND/UNIFRM/MCENROE
TOTAL    RECREATION FEES                                         .00            −60.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           −465.96               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           −465.96               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00           −465.96               .00

                   RUN DATE 11/27/2013 TIME 10:10:41  PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 

William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 

Council Members 

John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Maintenance &      

Fleet Divisions 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 

Lemoore * CA 93245 
 

Phone *(559) 924-6739 

FAX * (559) 924-6808 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3C 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: November 22, 2013  

Subject: Notice of Completion – CMC Office PH-1 Electrical  

 
Discussion: 
 
The Cinnamon Municipal Complex (CMC) Office PH1 Electrical project has been 
completed per plans, specifications and any change orders.   A Notice of Completion is 
attached. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The Capital Improvement Program CMC Office PH1 budget 4714B contract bid for 
electrical work was $56,189 with a change order in the amount of $18,529.55, for a total 
project payout of $74,718.55. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion, approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for the 
CMC Office PH1 Electrical project and authorize the City Manager to sign the Notice of 
Completion for Contra Costa Electric. 
 

 
 
 

 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 119 Fox 
Street, Lemoore, California, entered into an Agreement with Contra Costa Electric for the 
CMC Office Remodel PH1 electrical portion of the project and that such work had been 
completed and accepted by the City of Lemoore on the 3rd day of December, 2013. 
 
 
       CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                            Jeff Laws, City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Brooke Austin, Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE            ) 
 
 I am the Parks and Recreation Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is 
true of my knowledge except to those matters I believe it to be true and correct.  I certify 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this _____ day of ____________________, 2013 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Joe W. Simonson 
Parks and Recreation Director 
City of Lemoore 
 
 
 



 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On       before me, Brooke Austin, Chief Deputy City 
Clerk, personally appeared Jeff Laws, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the 
instrument, the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the 
instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
      
Brooke Austin 
Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On       before me, Brooke Austin, Chief Deputy City 
Clerk, personally appeared Joe W. Simonson, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his 
signature on the instrument, the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, 
executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
      
Brooke Austin 
Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 

William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 

Council Members 

John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Public Works  

Department 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 

FAX  (559) 924-6708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3D 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public 
Works/Planning 

Date: November 25, 2013  

Subject: Notice of Partial Completion – 19th/198 Irrigation Relocation Project  –
Clark Brothers, Inc. 

 

 
Discussion: 
 
Clark Brothers, Inc. has requested that a Notice of Partial Completion be filed.  The 
completed work includes the clearing and grubbing, basin excavation, 18” force main, 
36” storm pipe, 60” storm manholes, outlet structure, lift station, 10” force main and 
miscellaneous storm drain items. 
 
The remaining items to be completed include hydroseeding, baseball field installation, 
parking lot paving and striping.  Upon completion of all items, we will come before 
Council for a Final Notice of Completion. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the filing of the Notice of Partial 
Completion for the 19th/198 Irrigation Relocation Project with Clark Brothers, Inc. and 
authorize the City Manager to sign. 
 
 
 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 

NOTICE OF PARTIAL COMPLETION 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 119 Fox 
Street, Lemoore, California, entered into an Agreement with CLARK BROTHERS, INC., for 
the 19TH /198 IRRIGATION RELOCATION PROJECT within the City of Lemoore and that the 
following work has been completed and accepted by the City of Lemoore on the 3rd day of 
December, 2013: 
 

Such work includes Clearing and Grubbing, Basin Excavation, 18” Force Main, 36” 
Storm Pipe, 60” Storm Manholes, Outlet Structure, Lift Station, 10” Force Main and 
Miscellaneous Storm Drain Items which do not relate to Bid Items 17 – Hydroseed, 18 
– Install Baseball Field, 28 – Parking Lot Paving, and 30 – Parking Lot Striping. 

 
       CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                            Jeff Laws, City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Brooke Austin 
Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE            ) 
 
 I am the Public Works Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the foregoing 
Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is true of my 
knowledge except to those matters, I believe it to be true and correct.  I certify under penalty 
of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this _____ day of ____________________, 2013 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
David R. Wlaschin 
Public Works Director 
City of Lemoore 



 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 
 On ______________________________ before me, Brooke Austin, Chief Deputy City 
Clerk, personally appeared Jeff Laws, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Brooke Austin 
Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

On ______________________________ before me, Brooke Austin, Chief Deputy City 
Clerk, personally appeared David R. Wlaschin, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Brooke Austin 
Chief Deputy City Clerk 
  



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 

William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 

Council Members 

John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Office of the  

Fire Department 
 

210 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6797 

FAX  (559) 924-6708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: John Gibson, Fire Chief  

Date: November 26, 2013  

Subject: Public Hearing – Declaring Public Nuisance and Ordering Weed 
Abatement 

 

 
Discussion: 
 
A Public Hearing is scheduled for December 3, 2013 to take testimony form citizens and 
to consider any and all objections to the removal of weeds, grasses, and other fire 
hazards on the properties shown on Exhibit “A” of Resolution 2013-28. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
Unknown at this time.  If the City has to contract for the removal of weeds, then the City 
initially bears those costs.  Those costs are later passed on to the property owners in 
the form of a lien against the property and payment will be made with the next year’s 
taxes. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the Council consider any public comment and instruct staff to 
continue efforts on those properties not cleared by the owners. 
 
 
 







APN Site Location Notification Status

RAIL ROAD PROPERTY UNION PACIFIC 1ST NOTICE 10/23    2ND NOTICE 11/7

RAIL ROAD PROPERTY SAN JOAQUIN 1ST NOTICE 10/23    2ND NOTICE 11/7

023-510-040 LOT EAST OF WEST HILLS 1ST NOTICE 11/7

120-120-052 765 FLORENCE 1ST NOTICE 10/23    2ND NOTICE 11/7

021-130-001 731 CINNAMON 1ST NOTICE 10/23    2ND NOTICE 11/7

021-290-024 123 QUANDT PL. 1ST NOTICE 8/28    2ND NOTICE 11/7

023-150-005 669 CHAMPION
1ST NOTICE 9/3   2ND NOTICE 10/23        
3RD NOTICE 11/8

020-152-011 446 W BUSH ST
1ST NOTICE  8/14  2ND NOTICE 8/30        
3RD NOTICE 11/8

023-150-010 751 CHAMPION ST 1ST NOTICE 9/03 2ND NOTICE 11/8

023-170-003 633 VINE ST 1ST NOTICE 9/3  2ND NOTICE  11/8

023-130-033 380 CHAMPION 1ST NOTICE 9/9    2ND NOTICE 11/8

020-182-016 26 HAMLET 1ST NOTICE 9/9    2ND NOTICE 11/8

020-111-042 248 EAST D ST 1ST NOTICE 10/23  2ND NOTICE 11/8

023-020-010 LOT NORTH OF ETHEL REDS 1ST NOTICE 10/23  2ND NOTICE 11/8

023-020-068 S/W CORNER OF E BUSH ST 1ST NOTICE  11/1

023-020-069 LOT W. OF BEST WESTERN 1ST NOTICE 11/1

023-051-041 LOT N. OF WEST HILLS 1ST NOTICE 11/1

Exhibit "A" 

November 13, 2013



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 

William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Public Works/ 

Planning 
 

711 Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone(559)924-6704 

FAX(559)924-6708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 5 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Steve Brandt, City Planner  

Date: November 25, 2013  

Subject: Public Hearing - Negative Declaration, Tentative Subdivision Map 
2013-02 (Capistrano) and Planned Unit Development 2013-01 

 

 
Summary: 
 
Tentative Subdivision Map 2013-02 (Capistrano) is a request to subdivide 4.5 acres 
into 20 single-family lots, along with an outlot that would be dedicated to the City. 
Planned Unit Development 2013-01 is a request for a planned unit development on 
the site in accordance with City Zoning Code. 
 
The site is currently owned by Covington Property Holdings, who is being represented 
by Mitch Covington, the applicant.  The site is 4.5 acres. This is the same developer that 
that constructed the existing residential neighborhoods west and south of the site. 
 
The site is identified as APN 023-040-57.  The site is located just south of Bush Street, 
on the east side of Barcelona Street, and approximately 150 feet north of Toledo Street.  
Exhibit A is the full size proposed tentative subdivision map.  Exhibit B shows the 
Assessor’s Map that shows the site. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing and then: 
 

1) Adopt the Negative Declaration prepared for the project; 

2) Adopt Resolution #2013-29, approving Tentative Subdivision Map 2013-02 
(Capistrano) and Planned Unit Development 2013-01. 

 
Project Description 
 
The proposal would divide the 4.5 acre site into 20 single-family residential lots.  Outlot 
“A” would also be created along an existing ditch and dedicated to the City.  Lots 1 
through 4 would access from Barcelona Street.  Lots 5 through 20 would access from a 
new cul de sac street that would intersect with Barcelona Street. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

There is an existing groundwater interceptor easement along the east side of Lots 10 
through 16.  A new 20-foot wide easement is proposed along the north side of Lots 1, 9, 
and 10 for a new irrigation pipeline that would replace the existing irrigation ditch.  
Existing powerlines on the north side of the site are also proposed to be 
undergrounded. 
 
There is an existing sewer lift station underground in the Barcelona Street right of way in 
front of Lot 1.  The electrical meter and panel that provides electricity to the lift station is 
located on Lot 1 on a 7-foot high block wall.  The wall, panel, and meter are proposed to 
be relocated to another location on the north or south side of Lot 1. 
 
The planned unit development application proposes four home plans.  Each plan has 
two available front facades, for a total of 8 unique home styles for the 20 lots.  The 
elevations and floor plans are included as Exhibit C. 
 
Background Information - Project Evaluation 
 
The proposed project is consistent with the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance 
standards for residential density.  This project would supersede the previously approved 
planned unit development project on the site that was never constructed. 
 
City staff has been working with the applicant on the sewer lift station electrical meter 
and panel located on Lot 1.  After considering just lowering the meter and wall, the 
applicant has decided to relocate the meter to the edge of the lot.  This will provide 
better and be much less intrusive for the future resident.  Staff is recommending the 
new wall be lower than the existing wall, preferably no higher than 4 feet, if that would 
be allowed by PG&E. 
 
The lots on the north side of the site would have a 20-foot wide easement for the new 
irrigation pipeline in the back yards (side yard for Lot 1).  The lots are still large enough 
for homes to be constructed outside of the easement. 
 
The General Plan shows a bikeway connection from Barcelona Street to future 
development east of the Lemoore Canal.  If such a connection is constructed it would 
be more appropriate that it be built north of the site. 
 
The proposed home plans appear to have the differentiation in floor and façade design 
to avoid the repetitiousness that is discouraged in the Zoning Code.  The applicant has 
indicated that there would be a number of color schemes available to further 
differentiate the homes.  
 
The project as proposed, and with the recommended conditions, is consistent with the 
General Plan, the Zoning Code, and the Subdivision Ordinance.  Therefore, Staff 
recommends that the applications be approved, with the recommended findings 
conditions. 
 
 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Subsequent Actions 
 
The Council’s decision on the Negative Declaration, Tentative Subdivision Map, and 
Planned Unit Development is final. The applicant would have an initial 2-year period in 
which to submit a Final Subdivision Map. 
 
Attachments 
 
Draft Resolution 
 
Initial Study / Negative Declaration 
 
Exhibit A – Tentative Subdivision Map 
 
Exhibit B – Assessor’s Map showing site 
 
Exhibit C – Floor plans and Front Elevation plans 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-29 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPROVING TENTATIVE MAP 2013-02 (CAPISTRANO)  

AND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 2013-01  
 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
December 3, 2013, at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member 
______________, seconded by Council Member ____________ and carried that the following 
Resolution be adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Covington Property Holdings, represented by R Mitch Covington, has 
submitted tentative map and planned unit development applications to subdivide 4.5 acres into 
20 single-family lots on a site located on the east side of Barcelona Drive, approximately 150 
feet north of Toledo Street; and 
 

WHEREAS, an Initial Study was prepared in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which disclosed that no significant environmental impacts 
would result from the project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore, after duly published 
notice, held a public hearing before said Commission on October 28, 2013, and recommended 
approval of the Tentative Subdivision Map and Planned Unit Development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemoore, after duly published notice, held a 

public hearing on December 3, 2013; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore concurs that no significant environmental impacts would result from the identified 
project, and certifies that the Negative Declaration was prepared consistent with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA.) 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore approves 

Tentative Map 2013-02 (Capistrano) and Planned Unit Development 2013-01, based on the 
evidence presented and the following specific findings: 

 
1.  The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 

improvement, is consistent with the general plan and all applicable provisions of the 
Subdivision Ordinance. 

2. The proposed project does not exceed the total density under the base zoning district 
or the general plan land use designation. 

3. The proposed project will not be substantially detrimental to adjacent property, and 
will not materially impair the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance or the public interest. 

4. As proposed and conditioned herein, the site design of the project is consistent with 
the new residential development standards in the Zoning Ordinance. 

 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the approval by the Lemoore City Council of 
Tentative Map 2013-02 (Capistrano) and Planned Unit Development 2013-01 be subject to the 
following conditions: 

 
1. This approval shall supersede Planned Unit Development 99-01 as it applies to the 

site. 

2. The project shall be developed and maintained in substantial compliance with the 
tentative map, except for any modifications that may be needed to meet these 
conditions of approval. 

3. The name of the new street shall be modified and approved by the Public Works 
Department. 

4. The existing concrete wall with electric meter and panel on Lot 1 shall be relocated to 
the north or south side of the lot and reduced in height either to four feet or to the 
lowest height that is acceptable to Pacific Gas and Electric Company, whichever is 
higher. 

5. The existing irrigation canal located on Lots 1, 8, 9, and 10 shall be piped, with said 
pipe placed in a 20-foot wide easement in favor of Lemoore Canal and Irrigation 
Company. 

6. The existing overhead electrical power lines located on Lots 1, 8, 9, and 10 shall be 
undergrounded and placed into an easement or shall be relocated off of the site. 

7. A 6-foot to 7-foot wood fence or block wall shall be constructed along the north side 
of Lots 1, 9, and 10, and the east side of Lots 10 through 16. 

8. Plans for all public and private improvements, including but not limited to, water, 
sewer, storm drainage, road pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, street lights, and 
fire hydrants shall be approved by the City Engineer, and these improvements shall be 
completed in accordance with the approved plans to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department. 

9. Fire hydrant locations shall be approved by the Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department. 

10. Any existing roadway, sidewalk, or curb and gutter that is damaged during 
construction shall be repaired or replaced to the satisfaction of the Public Works 
Department. 

11. The existing parkway along Barcelona Drive shall be landscaped in accordance with 
City standards with the construction of homes on the adjacent lots (Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, and 
20.) 

12. Concrete pads for installation of mailboxes shall be provided in accordance with 
determinations made by the Lemoore Postmaster. 

13. The front yard setback of adjacent homes shall have a minimum 2-foot stagger 
between adjacent lots. 



14. Master home plans shall be substantially consistent to the floor plans and elevations 
submitted with the Planned Unit Development application, unless subsequently 
modified by the Planning Commission. 

15.  The developer shall comply with the standards, provisions, and requirements of the 
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District that relate to the project. 

16. The final subdivision map shall be submitted in accordance with City ordinances and 
standards. 

17. The project shall be subject to the applicable development impact fees adopted by 
resolution of the City Council. 

18. The expiration dates of the Planned Unit Development permit shall coincide with the 
expiration dates of the tentative map, as specified in the Subdivision Map Act and as 
may be legislatively extended. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
held on the 3rd day of December 2013, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 
 
       APPROVED: 

 
 
      _________________________ 
      William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_________________________ 
Brooke Austin 
Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CERTIFICATE 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS  )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE  ) 
 
 I, BROOKE AUSTIN, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify 
the foregoing Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and 
adopted at a Regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore called and held on 3rd 
day of December, 2013.  
 
Dated:  December 4, 2013 
 
        __________________________ 
        BROOKE AUSTIN 

Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 























































































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 

William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Public Works/ 

Planning 
 

711 Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone(559)924-6704 

FAX(559)924-6708 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Steve Brandt, City Planner 

Date: November 25, 2013  

Subject: Public Hearing – Negative Declaration, General Plan Amendment 
2013-01 and Zone Change 2013-01 

 

 
Summary 
 
General Plan Amendment 2013-01 is a request to remove the collector street and 
bikeway status from Bush Street west of Marsh Drive, and to change the land use 
designation from Low Density Residential and Parks & Recreation to Community 
Facilities. Zone Change 2013-01 is a request to change the zoning map from Low 
Density Residential (RLD) and Parks & Recreation (PR) to Public Services & 
Community Facilities (CF). 
 
The site is currently owned by Pharris Lemoore, LLC, who is being represented by Tim 
Palmquist, the applicant.  The site is approximately 53 acres. Pharris Lemoore, LLC, is 
planning to deed the property to the U.S. Navy (Naval Air Station Lemoore).  There are 
also plans for a conservation easement to be placed on the site that would prohibit 
future development of the site, including the development of residential dwellings.  The 
conservation easement would allow some limited use by West Hills Community College 
District. 
 
The site proposed for amendment includes APNs 023-510-34, 023-510-36, and a 
portion of 023-510-37.  The site is located at the northwest corner of West Hills 
Community College: Lemoore, both north and west of the intersection of Bush Street 
and Campus Drive.  Exhibit A shows the existing and proposed land use designations. 
Exhibit B shows the Assessor’s Parcel Map that shows the site. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing and then: 
 

1) Adopt the Negative Declaration prepared for the project; 

2) Adopt Resolution #2013-30 and Ordinance #2013-04 approving General Plan 
Amendment 2013-01 and Zone Change 2013-01.  

 



“In God We Trust” 

Project Description 
 
The proposal would change the City of Lemoore General Plan and the City of Lemoore 
Zoning Map in the following three ways: 
 

1. The General Plan’s Circulation Element would no longer show any 
required streets west of the Marsh Drive alignment.  Currently the 
Circulation Element shows Bush Street extending as a collector street 
west of Marsh Drive and then turning south at the abandoned Stratford 
railroad spur and curving back to Marsh Drive further south. 

 
2. The General Plan’s Land Use Element Map would be modified to 

Community Facilities on the land located west of Marsh Drive between 
the Union Pacific Railroad line and the land designated for Wetlands 
Conservation as.  Currently this land is designated mostly Low Density 
Residential, with approximately 3 acres designated Parks & Recreation.   

 
3. The Zoning Map would be modified to Public Services and Community 

Facilities (CF) on the land located west of Marsh Drive between the Union 
Pacific Railroad line and the land designated for Wetlands Conservation 
as.  Currently the Zoning Map shows RLD (Low Density Residential) and 
PR (Parks & Recreation) on the site. 

 
The applicant is making this request so that the City General Plan and Zoning Map will 
be consistent with agreements that will be between the applicant (the property owner 
Pharris, LLC), the U.S. Navy, and West Hills Community College District. 
 
Background Information - Project Evaluation 
 
A tentative subdivision map to divide the property into single-family residential lots was 
approved by the City in 2006.  This subdivision map, called TTM 845 or Victory Village, 
covers most of the project site as well as land east of the project site that is north of 
Bush Street. The land outside of the project area is Phase 1 of TTM 845 and is not a 
part of these proposed amendments. 
 
After the tentative map approval the Lemoore Naval Air Station expressed great 
concern to the property owner and the City, saying that the residential development 
would be a detriment to the Air Station’s mission.  After much negotiation, the U.S. Navy 
has agreed to purchase the property.  In addition, a conservation easement will be 
placed on the property so that is cannot be developed for residential uses.  California’s 
laws for conservation easements require a local non-profit entity be the trustee of the 
easement.  Because of its proximity to the site, West Hills Community College District 
has agreed to be the trustee of the conservation easement.  The conservation 
easement will allow the District to use to the site for very limited purposes, including 
stormwater drainage basins, agriculture, passive recreation, and educational activities 
related to conservation and environmental restoration. 
 
The City staff has reviewed the draft agreement between the property owner, the U.S. 
Navy, and the College District.  The agreement would prohibit Phases 2 and 3 of TTM 
845 from ever developing, and those phases of the tentative map would eventually 



“In God We Trust” 

expire.  Phase 1 of the tentative map would not be affected, and the applicant will 
continue to pursue development and home construction there. 
 
The agreement provides a benefit for each party.  The Navy will be assured that there 
will be no development west of Marsh Drive.  The College District obtains the use of 
additional property for a storm drainage basin that can serve their college site as well as 
land that could be used for educational conservation purposes.  Pharris, LLC, who also 
owns other property east of the site, will use the dirt dug out from the stormwater basins 
to raise the grade of other nearby sites.  These nearby sites are currently are in flood 
zone areas and need to be raised in order to develop. 
 
Given the provisions of the conservation agreement, the Community Facilities land use 
designation is the appropriate designation for the site.  Staff had considered the 
Conservation and the Agriculture land use designations, but those designations might 
not allow the educational uses and storm drainage basins that the College District 
intends.  Also, since the site will no longer be developing with urban uses, it is 
appropriate to remove the requirements for collector streets on the site. 
 
Implementation of the intended conservation easement can occur whether the City 
changes the land use designation and zoning or keeps it as is.  However, retaining 
residential designation and zoning on the site would provide a false impression of what 
appears to now be the permanent land use disposition of the site, and would overly 
inflate the statistics of vacant residential land inventory in the city.  Therefore, Staff 
recommends that the applications be approved. 
 
Subsequent Actions 
 
If approved, the Zone Change will be brought back to the City Council for a second 
reading of the Ordinance change, which would be the final approval.  The changes 
would be effective 30 days after final approval. 
 
Attachments 
 
Draft Resolution – GPA 2013-01 
 
Draft Ordinance – COZ 2013-01 
 
Initial Study / Negative Declaration 
 
Exhibit A – General Plan Amendment Map – Existing and Proposed 
 
Exhibit B – Assessor’s Parcel Map showing site 
 

 



RESOLUTION #2013-30 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 2013-01 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
December 3, 2013, at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Councilmember member 
______________, seconded by Councilmember ____________ and carried that the following 
Resolution be adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Pharris, LLC, represented by Tim Palmquist, has submitted applications to: 
1) remove the collector street and bikeway status from Bush Street west of Marsh Drive; 2) to 
change the land use designation from Low Density Residential and Parks & Recreation to 
Community Facilities; and 3) to change the zoning map from Low Density Residential (RLD) 
and Parks & Recreation (PR) to Public Services & Community Facilities (CF); and 
 

WHEREAS, an Initial Study was prepared in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which disclosed that no significant environmental impacts 
would result from the project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore, after duly published 
notice, held a public hearing before said Commission on October 28, 2013, and then 
recommended approval of the General Plan Amendment and Zone Change; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after duly published notice, held a public hearing on 

December 3, 2013; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore concurs that no significant environmental impacts would result from the identified 
project, and certify that the Negative Declaration was prepared consistent with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA.) 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore approves 

General Plan Amendment 2013-01, based on the evidence presented and the following specific 
findings: 

 
1.  The general plan amendment is in the public interest and the General Plan, as amended, 

will remain internally consistent. 

2. The zone change is consistent with the general plan goals, policies, and implementation 
programs. 

3. Given the provisions of the intended conservation agreement between the applicant, the 
U.S. Navy, and the West Hills Community College District, the Community Facilities 
land use designation is the appropriate designation for the site. 

4. Given the provisions of the intended conservation agreement between the applicant, the 
U.S. Navy, and the West Hills Community College District, the removal of required 
collector streets is the appropriate for the site 



5. Given the provisions of the intended conservation agreement between the applicant, the 
U.S. Navy, and the West Hills Community College District, the Public Services & 
Community Facilities (CF) is the appropriate zone for the site. 

6. Retaining the residential designation and zoning on the site would provide a false 
impression of what will now be the permanent land use disposition of the site, and would 
overly inflate the statistics of vacant residential land inventory in the city. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
held on the 3rd day of December, 2013, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 
 
       APPROVED: 

 
 
      _________________________ 
      William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_________________________ 
Brooke Austin 
Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATE 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS  )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE  ) 
 
 I, BROOKE AUSTIN, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify 
the foregoing Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and 
adopted at a Regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore called and held on 3rd   
day of December 2013.  
 
Dated:  December 4, 2013 
 
        __________________________ 
        BROOKE AUSTIN 

Chief Deputy City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-04 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
AMENDING ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE ZONING CODE  

(ZONE CHANGE #2013-01) 
 

 
WHEREAS, Pharris, LLC, represented by Tim Palmquist, has submitted 

applications to: 1) remove the collector street and bikeway status from Bush Street west 
of Marsh Drive; 2) to change the land use designation from Low Density Residential and 
Parks & Recreation to Community Facilities; and 3) to change the zoning map from Low 
Density Residential (RLD) and Parks & Recreation (PR) to Public Services & 
Community Facilities (CF); and 
 

WHEREAS, an Initial Study was prepared in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which disclosed that no significant environmental 
impacts would result from the project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore, after duly 
published notice, held a public hearing before said Commission on October 28, 2013, 
and then recommended approval of the General Plan Amendment and Zone Change; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after duly published notice, held a public hearing 

on December 3, 2013; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The Zoning Map of the Lemoore Zoning Ordinance is hereby 

changed as follows: 
 

The portions of the zoning map west of the Marsh Drive alignment that are 
designated Low Density Residential (RLD) and Parks & Recreation (PR) 
and identified as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs) 023-510-34 (portion), 
023-510-36, and 023-510-373 (portion) shall be changed to Public 
Services & Community Facilities (CF). 

 
Section 2.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance and 

cause it, or a summary of it, to be published once within 15 days of adoption in a 
newspaper of general circulation printed and published within the City of Lemoore, and 
shall post a certified copy of this Ordinance, including the vote for and against the same, 
in the Office of the City Clerk in accordance with Government Code Section 36933.  Any 
summary of this Ordinance must be approved by the City Attorney before its publication.  
The City Clerk is further directed to cause this Ordinance to be codified after its 
adoption. 

 
 
 



Section 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption.  
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a Regular Meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Lemoore held on the 3rd day of December, 2013 and was passed 
and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held on the   day of   
  , 2013 by the following vote:

  
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
             
              
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
    
Brooke Austin  
Chief Deputy City Clerk 
 







































































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 

William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 

Council Members 

John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Office of the  

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 7 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Brooke Austin, Executive Secretary  

Date: November 25, 2013  

Subject: Presentation – Regional Transportation Plan –  
Kings Regional Vision 

 

 
Discussion: 
 
Kendall Flint of Flint Strategies is working with the Kings County Association of 
Governments on the Regional Transportation Plan – Kings Regional Vision.  He has 
requested to make a presentation and plans to provide an overview of the planning 
process, elements of the plan and an opportunity for Council, staff and members of the 
public to ask questions.   
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Discussion only. 
 



Project Overview Presentation 



Kings Regional Vision Overview


 

Blueprint of region’s future transportation 
 improvements and investments based on goals 

 established by the region


 

Minimum 20‐year time horizon – ours goes to 2040


 

Regional level plan covering all modes of 
 transportation (car, bike, pedestrian, bus, rail and 

 aviation)


 

Coordination of regional land use, housing & 
 transportation planning



What Must the Plan Do?


 

Reflect the shared vision of all of the Cities and 
 the County


 

Use Fiscal Constraint – we can only include 
 projects we can pay for.


 

Preserve and emphasize efficient use of our 
 existing transportation system.


 

Provide a prioritized list of projects


 

Achieve region’s established air quality goals 




 

Coordinates land use plans, regional housing 
 plans for residents of all incomes, and 

 transportation investment plans to attempt to 
 reduce greenhouse gas emissions


 

Secondary benefits include: reducing 
 congestion, improving air quality, and providing 

 more housing and transportation choices


 

Does NOT supersede local land use decisions


 

Required by State Law

Linking Land Use and Transportation



Workshops!





 

Winter 2014 –
 

Identification of alternative 
 scenarios  and selection of the preferred 

 scenario



 

Spring 2014 ‐Release of Draft EIR for public 
 comment.



 

Summer 2014 ‐
 

Public hearings on the Final EIR 
 and Kings Regional Vision Plan.

Project Schedule



www.KingsRegionalVision.com



We Welcome Your Comments

Bruce Abanathie
Kings County Association of Governments
339 W. “D”

 
Street, Suite B

Lemoore, CA 93245
(559) 852‐

 
2584 

Bruce.Abanathie@co.kings.ca.us



Questions?



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 

William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 

Council Members 

John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Finance Department 
 

119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 11 
To: Lemoore Successor Agency to the  

Former Redevelopment Agency 
 

From: Cheryl Silva, Finance Director  

Date: November 26, 2013  

Subject: Refunding of the Series 1998 and 2003 Bonds  

 
Discussion: 
 
The Lemoore Redevelopment Agency issued its $6,180,000 Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds (“1998 Bonds”) in 1998, and its $13,835,000 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 
(“2003 Bonds”) in 2003 (collectively, the “Prior Bonds”).  In 2011, another $19,150,000 
Tax Allocation Bond (“2011 Bonds”) was issued prior to the dissolution of the 
Redevelopment Agency.  The proceeds from the 2011 Bonds are being held by the 
trustee due to the dissolution of redevelopment and the position of the State 
Department of Finance. 
 
Subsequent to the dissolution of the Lemoore Redevelopment Agency, staff consulted 
with Cooperman Associates, a financial advising firm, regarding the potential savings 
associated with refunding of the bonds held by the Successor Agency to the Former 
Redevelopment Agency.  The recommendation is to Refund the 1998 and 2003 Bonds 
into a combined estimated $16,700,000 refunding at a market interest rate, currently 
estimated at 4%.  The 1998 Bonds carry a fixed interest rate ranging from 5.0% to 5.2% 
for the remainder of the term of the bonds.  The 2003 Bonds carry a fixed interest rate 
ranging from 3.9% to 4.75% for the remainder of the term on the bonds.  The potential 
savings for the refunding is estimated at $1,000,000.  This savings would be realized 
over the next 20 years.   
 
The potential savings on the debt payments of the Lemoore Successor Agency would 
have the effect of increasing the funds available at the County to distribute to the local 
taxing entities.  The City of Lemoore receives approximately 19.8% of the savings, 
which calculates out to approximately $198,000 over the term on the refunded bond 
issue.  Also included in this proposal is a one time fiscal consultant fee of $20,000 
payable to the City for costs associated with the refunding. 
 
In order to move forward, the Lemoore Successor Agency must approve a resolution 
authorizing the refunding of the 1998 and 2003 Bonds.  The next step would be to hold 
a meeting of the Oversight Board for Successor Agency to the Former Lemoore 
Redevelopment Agency to receive approval to move forward with the refunding of the 
bonds.  The final step would be for the State Department of Finance to approve the 



“In God We Trust” 

refunding.  Cooperman Associates representative, Josh Cooperman, will be taking the 
lead in completing this process and will be available at the meeting to answer any 
questions. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The proposed 20 year, $16,700,000 Refunding Bonds would be paid with the existing 
funds received from the county as approved on the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedules that are approved twice a year.  The potential savings associated with the 
debt over the 20 years is estimated at approximately $1,000,000.  This will be shared by 
all taxing entities, with the City receiving approximately 19.8% or $198,000 over the 20 
years.  This fiscal year, the City would request a one-time fee of $20,000 for serving as 
the fiscal consultant on the refunding of the bonds. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Successor Agency adopt Resolution No. 2013-01, Approving the Final Form 
and Documents Relating to the Issuance and Sale of 2013 Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds to Refinance Outstanding Bonds of the Former Lemoore Redevelopment 
Agency, and Approving Related Matters and Official Actions. 
 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE LEMOORE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING THE FINAL FORM OF 

DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 2013 TAX 
ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS TO REFINANCE OUTSTANDING 

BONDS OF THE FORMER LEMOORE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AND 
APPROVING RELATED MATTERS AND OFFICIAL ACTIONS 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 34172(a) of the California Health and Safety Code (the 
“Code”), the Lemoore Redevelopment Agency (the “Former Agency”) has been dissolved and 
no longer exists as a public body, corporate and politic, and pursuant to Section 34173 of the 
Code, the City Council of the City of Lemoore has elected to serve as the successor agency to the 
Former Agency (the “Successor Agency”); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 34179, an oversight board (the “Oversight Board”) has been 
duly established for the Successor Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Redevelopment Plan for a redevelopment project known and designated as the 
Lemoore Redevelopment Project (the “Redevelopment Project”) has been adopted and approved 
by the City of Lemoore and all requirements of law for and precedent to the adoption and 
approval of the Redevelopment Plan, as amended, have been duly complied with; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to provide financing for the Redevelopment Project, the Former Agency 
issued the following tax allocation bonds prior to its dissolution: 
 

(a) the Lemoore Redevelopment Project, Issue of 1998, Tax Allocation Bonds, issued 
by the Former Agency in the aggregate original principal amount of $6,180,000 (the “1998 
TABs”), pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of April 1, 1999, by and between the Former 
Agency and U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as trustee (the “1998 Bonds Indenture”); 
 

(b) the Lemoore Redevelopment Project, Series 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds, issued 
by the Former Agency in the aggregate original principal amount of $13,835,000 (the “2003 
TABs”), pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of May 1, 2003, by and between the Former 
Agency and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “2003 Bonds Indenture”);  

 
(c) the Lemoore Redevelopment Project, 2011 Tax Allocation Bonds, issued by the 

Former Agency in the aggregate original principal amount of $19,150,000 (the “2011 TABs”), 
pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of February 1, 2011, by and between the Former 
Agency and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “2011 Bonds Indenture”), and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 27, 2012 as part of the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 State of California budget 
bill, the Governor signed into law Assembly Bill 1484 (“AB 1484”), which modified or added to 
some of the provisions of California Assembly Bill No. 26 (“AB 26”), including provisions 
related to the refunding of outstanding redevelopment agency bonds and the expenditure of 
remaining bond proceeds derived from redevelopment agency bonds issued on or before 



 

 

December 31, 2010, thereby providing a mechanism to refund tax allocation bonds under certain 
enumerated circumstances; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is hereby determined that based on current conditions in the municipal bond 
market, the 1998 TABs and the 2003 TABs (collectively, the “Prior Bonds”) may be refunded 
for the purpose of realizing debt service savings which would result in additional tax increment 
revenues for distribution to the affected taxing agencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 34177.5(a)(1) of the Code authorizes successor agencies to refund 
outstanding bonds provided that (i) the total interest cost to maturity on the refunding bonds or 
other indebtedness plus the principal amount of the refunding bonds or other indebtedness shall 
not exceed the total remaining interest cost to maturity on the bonds or other indebtedness to be 
refunded plus the remaining principal of the bonds or other indebtedness to be refunded, and (ii) 
the principal amount of the refunding bonds or other indebtedness shall not exceed the amount 
required to defease the refunded bonds or other indebtedness, to establish customary debt service 
reserves, and to pay related costs of issuance (the “Refunding Criteria”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 34177.5(b) of the Code authorizes the Successor Agency to issue bonds 
pursuant to Article 11 (commencing with §53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 
of the Government Code (the “Refunding Bond Law”) for the purpose of refunding of 
outstanding bonds and other obligations of the Former Agency, subject to the conditions 
precedent contained in Section 34177.5 of the Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Successor Agency wishes at this time to authorize the issuance of its Successor 
Agency to the Lemoore Redevelopment Agency, Lemoore Redevelopment Project, Series 2013 
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $__,000,000 
(the “Refunding Bonds”), for the purpose of providing funds to refinance the Prior Bonds, and to 
request that the Oversight Board also approve the issuance of the Refunding Bonds by the 
Successor Agency, as authorized by Section 34177.5(f) of the Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to efficiently accomplish the execution and delivery of the Refunding 
Bonds, the Successor Agency desires to appoint a financial advisor, placement agent, and bond 
counsel to provide the necessary professional services in connection therewith; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of the refunding of the Prior Bonds, the Refunding Bonds will be 
secured by a pledge of and lien on the tax increment revenues received with respect to the 
Redevelopment Project, on a parity with the pledge and lien which secures the 2011 TABs, and 
such pledge and lien will be senior to all other outstanding notes, bonds and other obligations of 
the Former Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Successor Agency further requests that the Oversight Board also make certain 
determinations described below on which the Successor Agency will rely in its issuance of the 
Refunding Bonds; and 
 



 

 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency wishes at this time to approve the final form of various legal 
documents relating to the issuance and sale of an initial series of the Refunding Bonds for the 
purpose of refunding the Prior Bonds; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Successor Agency to the Lemoore 
Redevelopment Agency, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
Section 2.  Authorization and Approval of Refunding Bonds.  The Successor Agency hereby 
authorizes and approves the issuance of the Refunding Bonds, in one or more series, in the 
aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $__,000,000, for the purpose of providing for the 
refunding of the Prior Bonds.  As a condition precedent to the sale and delivery of Refunding 
Bonds, staff of the Successor Agency shall cause the Financial Advisor to confirm in writing that 
the debt service savings resulting from the refunding of the Prior Bonds will achieve debt service 
savings in compliance with the Refunding Criteria. 
 
Section 3.  Authorization of Sale.  The Successor Agency hereby authorizes the sale of the 
Refunding Bonds by either (a) negotiated sale to Southwest Securities for reoffering to the 
public, (b) private placement with a bank or other financial institution, or (c) a combination of (a) 
and (b); provided that the net present value of the debt service savings from the refunding is at 
least three percent (3%) of the par amount of the refunded Prior Bonds. The Designated Officers 
are hereby authorized to choose the method of sale in consultation with the Financial Advisor. 
The Board hereby authorizes the Designated Officers, and each of them individually, on behalf 
of this Board, to either (a) negotiate the final terms of the sale of the Bonds with Southwest 
Securities pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, (b) in conjunction with Southwest Securities, as 
placement agent, or (c) a combination of (a) and (b), negotiate the final terms of the sale of the 
Bonds to a bank or other financial institution. 
 
Section 3.  Authorized Representatives.  The _________, __________, _______________, and 
any other person authorized by the Successor Agency to act on its behalf shall each be an 
“Authorized Representative” of the Successor Agency for the purposes of structuring and 
providing for the issuance of the Refunding Bonds, and are hereby authorized, jointly and 
severally, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Successor Agency, to execute and deliver 
any and all documents and certificates that may be required to be executed in connection with the 
issuance of the Refunding Bonds, and to do any and all things and take any and all actions which 
may be necessary or advisable, in their discretion, to effectuate the actions approved in this 
Resolution. 
 
Section 4.  Approval of Indenture of Trust.  The Successor Agency hereby approves the 
Indenture of Trust (the “Indenture of Trust”), by and between the Successor Agency and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as Trustee, in substantially the form submitted at this meeting and 
made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein (the “Indenture”). An Authorized 
Representative is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver, and the Secretary of the 
Successor Agency is hereby authorized and directed to attest to, the Indenture for and in the 



 

 

name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, in substantially the respective forms on file with 
the Secretary, with such changes therein, deletions therefrom and additions thereto as an 
Authorized Representative shall approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the 
execution and delivery of the Indenture. The Successor Agency hereby authorizes the delivery 
and performance of the Indenture. 
 
Section 5.  Approval of Escrow Agreements.  The Successor Agency hereby approves two 
separate Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement (collectively, the “Escrow Agreements”) each 
between the Successor Agency and U.S. Bank National Association, as escrow agent, prescribing 
the terms and provisions for the refunding of the 1998 TABs and the 2003 TABs, respectively, in 
substantially the form submitted at this meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full 
herein.  An Authorized Representative is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver, 
and the Secretary of the Successor Agency is hereby authorized and directed to attest to, each of 
the Escrow Agreements for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, in 
substantially the respective forms on file with the Secretary, with such changes therein, deletions 
therefrom and additions thereto as an Authorized Representative shall approve, such approval to 
be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Escrow Agreements. The 
Successor Agency hereby authorizes the delivery and performance of the Escrow Agreements. 
 
Section 6.  Appointment of Consultants.  The Successor Agency hereby appoints The Weist 
Law Firm as Bond Counsel, Cooperman Associates as Financial Advisor, and Southwest 
Securities as underwriter or placement agent in connection with the financing described in this 
Resolution. An Authorized Representative is authorized and directed to execute an agreement 
with each of such firms in the respective forms on file with the Secretary. As provided in such 
agreements compensation payable to Financial Advisor, Placement Agent and Bond Counsel is 
contingent upon the successful completion of the financing proceedings and shall be paid from a 
portion of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds. 
 
Section 7.  Oversight Board Approval.  The Successor Agency hereby formally requests the 
Oversight Board to approve the issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds as provided in this 
Resolution and the Indenture. 
 
Section 8.  Determinations by the Oversight Board. The Successor Agency hereby further 
requests that the Oversight Board make the following determinations upon which the Successor 
Agency will rely in its issuance of the Refunding Bonds: 
 

(a) As provided in Section 34177.5(f) of the Code, the Successor Agency is 
authorized to recover its costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Refunding Bonds 
from the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds, including the cost of reimbursing the City for 
administrative staff time spent with respect to the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of the 
Refunding Bonds. 
 

(b) The authorization and sale of the Refunding Bonds, and the application of 
proceeds thereof to the refunding in whole or in part of the Prior Bonds and the payment of costs 
of issuance, as provided in the Indenture and authorized by Section 34177.5(a) of the Code, 
shall, upon initial approval of the Oversight Board, be implemented by the Successor Agency, 



 

 

notwithstanding the provisions of Section 34177.3 of the Code or any other provision of law to 
the contrary, without the requirement for further approval from the Oversight Board, the 
California Department of Finance, the Kings County Auditor-Controller or any other person or 
entity other than the Successor Agency. 
 

(c) The Successor Agency shall enter the amounts of the final debt service 
determined upon sale and delivery of the Refunding Bonds into the Recognized Obligation Debt 
Service Schedule attached to the Indenture, and the amounts so entered shall be final and 
conclusive upon the Oversight Board, the California Department of Finance and all other 
interested persons and entities and the Recognized Obligation Debt Service Schedule shall not be 
amended except as provided in the Indenture. 
 

(d) The Successor Agency shall be entitled to receive its full allocation of 
Administrative Cost Allowance under Section 34181(a)(3) of the Code without any deductions 
with respect to continuing costs related to the Refunding Bonds, such as trustee's fees, auditing 
and fiscal consultant fees and continuing disclosure and rating agency costs (collectively, 
“Continuing Costs of Issuance”), and such Continuing Costs of Issuance shall be payable from 
property tax revenues pursuant to Section 34183 of the Code. 
 
Section 9.  Filing of this Resolution. The Secretary of the Successor Agency is hereby 
authorized and directed to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Oversight Board and, 
as provided in Section 34180(j) of the Code, with the Kings County Administrative Officer, the 
Kings County Auditor-Controller and the California Department of Finance. 
 
Section 10.  Official Actions.   All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of the 
Successor Agency with respect to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds are hereby approved, 
confirmed and ratified.  Each Authorized Representative and any and all other officers of the 
Successor Agency are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the 
Successor Agency, to do any and all things and take any and all actions, including execution and 
delivery of any and all assignments, certificates, requisitions, including requisitions for the 
payment of costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds, agreements, including agreements in 
customary form providing for the investment of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds, notices, 
consents, and other documents, which they, or any of them, may deem necessary or advisable in 
order to consummate the sale, issuance and delivery of the Refunding Bonds and the refunding 
of the Prior Bonds. 
 
Section 11.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its 
passage and adoption. 
 
/// 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Successor Agency 
to the Lemoore Redevelopment Agency at a special meeting this 3rd day of December, 2013, by 
the following vote: 

Deleted: 8



 

 

 
AYES: 
 

NOES: 
 

ABSENT: 
 

ABSTAIN: 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 

_________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________ 
Brooke Austin, Secretary 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

              City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 

Lemoore � CA  93245 

Phone � (559) 924-6700 

FAX � (559) 924-9003 

              

To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: December 3, 2013 

Subject:       Activity Update 

 

Correspondence 

♦  Mental Health Services Act Plan Annual Update November 2013 

♦  Safe Drinking Water Application Update November 2013 

   

   

   

   

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 




























































































































	Agenda 12-3-13
	Agenda Back
	SS Item 2-1 - Consideration of Sale - Lemoore Golf Course
	SS Item 2-2 - Golf Course Debt - October 2013
	Item 3A - Minutes - Regular Meeting - November 19, 2013
	Item 3B - Warrant Register 13-14 - November 27, 2013
	Item 3C-1 - Notice of Completion - CMC Office PH-1 Electrical
	Item 3C-2 - Notice of Completion - CMC Office PH-1 Electrical
	Item 3D-1 - Notice of Partial Completion - 19th-198 - Irrigation Relocation Project
	Item 3D-2 - Notice of Partial Completion - 19th-198 Relocation Project
	Item 4-1 - Declaring Public Nuisance and Ordering Weed Abatement
	Item 4-2 - Resolution 2013-28
	Resolution 2013-28 - Approved
	Resolution 2013-28 Exhibit A

	Item 5-1 - Public Hearing - Capistrano Phase V
	Item 5-2 - Resolution 2013-29
	Item 5-3 - Capistrano Attachments
	Item 6-1 - Public Hearing - West Bush Street
	Item 6-2 - Resolution 2013-30
	Item 6-3 - Ordinance 2013-04
	Item 6-4 - GPA 2013-01 Attachments
	Item 7-1 - Presentation - Regional Transportation Plan - Kings Regional Vision
	Item 7-2 - Kings Regional Vision
	�Project Overview Presentation �
	Kings Regional Vision Overview
	What Must the Plan Do?
	Linking Land Use and Transportation
	Workshops!
	Project Schedule
	www.KingsRegionalVision.com
	We Welcome Your Comments
	Questions?

	Item 11-1 - Refunding of Series 1998 and 2003 Bonds
	Item 11-2 - Resolution 2013-01 - Redline Draft 11-26-13
	Activity Update 11-27-13
	Activity Update Memo - December 3, 2013
	AU Item 01 - KC Behavorial Health Plan Update
	AU Item 02 - Safe Drinking Water Application Update


